
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 


Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom: 
 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83701037113?pwd=1j0WkmXcm7b4G4Ifhy3nObHF6a9DbZ.1 


 
Meeting ID: 837 0103 7113    Passcode: 840689 
One tap mobile 
+19292056099,,83701037113#,,,,*840689# US (New York)  
+13017158592,,83701037113#,,,,*840689# US (Washington DC) 
 
In-person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 
              321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 Live streamed:  
The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981 or TDS 
Channel 981.  The WSTO-TV app is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android and 
iOS.  
 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, 
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher 
and Christina Wozniak Scanlon 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF THE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A 
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to 
attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@cityofstoughton.com 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
1.  Roll Call  
 
2.  Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
 
3.  Public Comment Period: 


A. If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form and submit 
it by 6:30 p.m. on January 23, 2024, http://speak.cityofstoughton.com. 
 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA - AMENDED 
Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at 
the time and location given below. 


 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83701037113?pwd=1j0WkmXcm7b4G4Ifhy3nObHF6a9DbZ.1

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@cityofstoughton.com

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





4. Communications and Presentations: 
 A. Conduit debt – Industrial Revenue Bonds – Bridgette Keating/Thomas Cameron – Quarles & Brady 
 B. Vested sick leave update – Finance Director Ehlinger 
 C. STI Sustainability Presentation – Strang, Inc. 
 
5.  Consent Agenda: 


A. Council Minutes – December 12, 2023  
B. Committee Minutes and Reports: Plan Commission (12-21-2023); Tree Commission (12-13-2023);          
Finance Committee (12-12-2023); Redevelopment Authority (12-13-2023, 01-02-2024); Seniors in Need 
(12/20/23); Library Board (12/20/2023); Landmarks Commission (12/14/2023); Public Works (10/19/2023)               


 
OLD BUSINESS     


6.  None 
                                              


NEW BUSINESS 


7.  R-08-2024 Approving an extra-territorial, jurisdictional (ETJ) land division for property located at 
1450 Pleasant Hill Road, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin. (Plan Commission recommends 
approval 6-0 on 1/08/24) 
 
8. O-01-2024 To adopt modification to Subsections 74-112 and 74-113 of the City of Stoughton 
Municipal Code of Ordinances. (Utilities Committee recommended approval to Council 6-0) 


          FIRST READING  


9. R-09-2024 Approve tax incremental financing request Emmi Roth USA – Solar panels (Finance 
Committee considering on 01/23/2024)     TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
 
10. R-10-2024 Reduction in GIP-Glacier Moraine, LLC Letter of Credit (Finance Committee 
recommends approval 6-0 on 1/09/2024) 
 
11. Approve STI Holding’s request for tax incremental financing and related Agreement to Undertake 
Development relating to a proposed development north of the 51 West Development. ** 


          TIME SENSITIVE  


 
ADJOURNMENT 


**The Common Council may convene in closed session per State Statute 19.85(1) (e) Deliberating or 
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other 
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. The 
Common Council may reconvene in an open session to discuss and take action on the subject matter 
discussed in the closed session. ** 


 







Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 
services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83701037113?pwd=1j0WkmXcm7b4G4Ifhy3nObHF6a9DbZ.1 
 
Meeting ID: 837 0103 7113 
Passcode: 840689 
 
--- 
 
One tap mobile 
+19292056099,,83701037113#,,,,*840689# US (New York)  
+13017158592,,83701037113#,,,,*840689# US (Washington DC) 
 
--- 
 
Dial by your location 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
 
Meeting ID: 837 0103 7113 
Passcode: 840689 
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbuYmk4aOI 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83701037113?pwd=1j0WkmXcm7b4G4Ifhy3nObHF6a9DbZ.1

https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbuYmk4aOI






Department Governmental Activities
Police PS 279,463.75$  31.2% PS Public Safety 380,046.32$  42.4%
Public Works PW, CR, SW 150,730.58    16.8% GG General Government 151,944.39    17.0%
Public Library CR 65,597.91       7.3% PW Public Works 119,578.03    13.3%
Finance GG 59,337.51       6.6% CR Culture Recreation Education 119,255.95    13.3%
Senior Center HH 58,568.79       6.5% HH Health and Human Services 58,568.79       6.5%
Fire PS 53,551.17       6.0% CD Conservation Development - 0.0%
Planning & Development GG, PS, PW, CD 50,193.20       5.6% Subtotal 829,393.48    92.6%
Opera House CR 37,512.82       4.2%
EMS EMS 36,742.92       4.1% Business-Type Activities
Human Resources/Risk Mgmt GG 34,410.19       3.8% Storm Water 29,662.00       3.3%
Info Tech/Media Services GG 32,063.00       3.6% Emergency Medical Services 36,742.92       4.1%
City Clerk GG 13,445.01       1.5% Subtotal 66,404.92       7.4%
Municipal Court GG 12,388.17       1.4%
Recreation Programs CR 11,793.38       1.3%
Total 895,798.40$  100.0% Total 895,798.40$  100.0%


12/31/2023 journal entry
100-00000-39900 FUND BALANCE UNASSIGNED 6,764.68$  
100-00000-39804 FUND BAL ASSIGN RETIREMENT (6,764.68)$  
Adjust vested sick leave balance to actual


City of Stoughton
Vested Sick Leave Balances


As of 12/31/2023


Adjustment as per R-131-203 (attached)







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend City policy regarding funding for vested sick leave payouts 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/22/2023 


Fiscal Impact:   $361,415 


File Number: R-131-2023 Date: 08/22/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has been following Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 16 – Accounting for Compensated Absences (GASB 16) since 
January 1, 1994; and, 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has accrued liabilities for sick leave pay that are 
considered vested employee benefits under Wisconsin case law; and, 


WHEREAS, the above accounting standard requires governmental funds to recognize 
these liabilities only when the employee has announced their retirement; and, 


WHEREAS, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board has promulgated Statement 
No. 101 – Compensated Absences (GASB 101) which the City of Stoughton is scheduled to 
implement effective January 1, 2024; and, 


WHEREAS, GASB 101 continues to require governmental funds to recognize these 
liabilities only when the employee has announced their retirement; and, 


WHEREAS, the calculated sick leave liability for the City of Stoughton governmental 
funds was $889,034 at December 31, 2022; and, 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton created an assigned fund balance within the General 
Fund of $850,067 with R-175-2022 on August 23, 2022; and, 


WHEREAS, the above assigned fund balance is currently $527,619 due to retirements that 
have occurred during 2022 and 2023; and, 


WHEREAS, Baker Tilly US, LLP as part of their 2022 financial statements highlights 
presentation pointed out that the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund is at 40.6% of 
budgeted expenditures which is well above the City of Stoughton’s fund balance policy’s 
maximum percentage of 25%; and, 


TIME SENSITIVE ITEM







dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight



dehlinger

Highlight





		R-131-2023 Amend City policy regarding funding for vested sick leave payouts.pdf

		R-xxx-2023 Amend City policy regarding funding for vested sick leave payouts.pdf

		R-xxx-2023 Amend City policy regarding funding for vested sick leave payouts.pdf

		Page 10.pdf

		Fund 100 fund balances 08-04-2023.pdf

		xxx-00000-2170x vested benefits 12-31-2022.pdf

		R-175-2022 - Amend 2022 adopted budget for vested compensated absences.pdf

		15 R-175-2022 - Amend 2022 adopted budget for vested compensated absences

		15a - Compensated absences - Utility PILT documentation

		254030915-City of Stoughton AUD 12-31-2021 DRAFT 07222022.pdf

		City of Stoughton 2020 GAAS FS Audit FINAL.pdf

		Stoughton, City FS Final 2019.pdf







		2022 FS highlights C Stoughton.pdf



		Compensated absences 2023.pdf










s y n c h r o n i c i t y
D


E
S


I
G


N


January 23rd, 2024


Stoughton Trailers
Sustainability Initiatives







s y n c h r o n i c i t y
D


E
S


IG
N


s y n c h r o n i c i t y
D


E
S


I
G


N
The Public Realm
▪ Doing the right thing for 


the greater good


▪ Indigenous “Town 


Green”


▪ Public investment – TIF


▪ A sense of place


▪ Third Place


▪ Walking Trails


▪ Where community 


happens







3


Restoring Harmony
▪ Long, patient process: Looking to the long term


▪ Indigenous prairie vegetation: Biomass


▪ Prairie burn to remove invasives and restore the land


▪ Rootedness


Kentucky 


Bluegrass







4


The Greater Good: 


 Placemaking, the Ecology of the Land, our Neighborhood and our Community.
▪ Prairie Swale


▪ Stormwater management


Storm Event







s y n c h r o n i c i t y
D


E
S


IG
N


s y n c h r o n i c i t y
D


E
S


I
G


N


▪ Indigenous prairie 
vegetation: 
Biomass


▪ On-site stormwater 
strategies and 
wetland 
preservation


▪ Easy access and 
proximity to bike 
paths and park 


▪ Electric Vehicle 
parking ready—
excess electrical 
capacity for 25 EV 
charging stations


Sustainability Strategies – Site Design







Wholistic Sustainability


6


Then


▪ Physical/Aesthetic


▪ Mass Production


▪ Cradle to Grave


▪ Prescriptive 


Now


▪ Wholistic


▪ Craftsmanship


▪ Cradle to Cradle


▪ Evidence-Based


▪ Sustainable design synchronicity: The fundamental DNA of the entire design


▪ Seamless integration of site and building


▪ Massing & solar orientation


▪ Cool daylighting & improved access to views


▪ Thermal performance of building envelope


▪ Efficiency of HVAC system







7


Building for the Long Term
▪ Durable materials


▪ Designing to defy obsolescence


▪ Flexible design to accommodate change of use


▪ Loose fit, long life


▪ Timeless architecture that stands the test of time


▪ Long term flourishing of the community







8


Daylighting + Solar Orientation


• Significantly thinner floor plate then typical 
commercial office buildings. Provides natural 
lighting in all spaces to reduce dependance on 
artificial lighting.


• Great care taken with respect to solar orientation 
and reducing heat gain.


• Large glass openings are orientated to the north.


• The large glass opening at the lobby is shaded 
by a large entry canopy sized using solar studies.


South (main entry)


North (parkland)







9


• Structural systems have been upsized to carry the 
load of future photovoltaic (PV) panels across nearly 
entire roof (image right)


• Main electrical switchgear upsized to handle future 
PV.


• Interior space dedicated to housing future PV 
invertors. 


• Electrical systems in place to support up to 25 electric 
vehicle charging stalls.


• Beyond electric: 10 dedicated ride-in/ride-out bike 
parking stalls inside the building with room for 
expansion.


Ready for the Electric Future







10


• Access to daylighting in all workspaces --Reduces 
reliance on electric lighting.


• LED lighting fixtures controlled by occupancy sensors


• Automated building controls


• Low flow plumbing fixtures


• Natural wood wrapping building services cores. Both a 
branding tie-in to Stoughton Trailers’ trailer beds and a 
negative embodied carbon product.


Sustainability Strategies – Building Design







11


• Natural wood ceiling and wall applications contribute both a 
branding tie-in to Stoughton Trailers’ trailer beds and a 
negative embodied carbon product.


• No Red List materials are used in the interior finishes


• No vinyl flooring—reduce carbon footprint/reliance on 
petrochemicals


• Interior finishes selections contain recycled content and meet 
multiple sustainability benchmarks (Cradle to Cradle*, Declare
Label*)


• All soft flooring materials are Cradle-to-Cradle Silver 
certified


• Fitness flooring is Cradle-to-Cradle Bronze


Sustainability Strategies – Material Selection


*Cradle to Cradle is a material certification system focused on equity, health, 
and sustainability


*Declare Label is a platform to identify Red List-free products and/or increase 
transparency through product disclosure







MILWAUKEE REGIONAL OFFICE 


W238N1610 Busse Road, Suite 102


Waukesha, WI 53188


262.875.6760 STRANG-INC.COM


MADISON REGIONAL OFFICE


811 East Washington Avenue, Suite 200


Madison, WI 53703 


608.276.9200


MADISON REGIONAL OFFICE


811 East Washington Avenue, Suite 200


Madison, WI 53703 


608.276.9200 STRANG-INC.COM


MILWAUKEE REGIONAL OFFICE 


W238N1610 Busse Road, Suite 102


Waukesha, WI 53188


262.875.6760


Thank You!  





		Slide 1: Stoughton Trailers Sustainability Initiatives

		Slide 2

		Slide 3

		Slide 4

		Slide 5

		Slide 6: Wholistic Sustainability

		Slide 7

		Slide 8: Daylighting + Solar Orientation

		Slide 9: Ready for the Electric Future

		Slide 10

		Slide 11: Sustainability Strategies – Material Selection

		Slide 12: Thank You!  






Meetings of:     COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean 
Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher and Christina 
Wozniak Scanlon 


 
CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Christen called the roll, and 10 alders were present. Majewski were absent and excused. 
 
Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
Mayor Swadley noted the meeting had been properly noticed. 
 
Public Comment Period: 
No one signed up. 
 
Communications and Presentations: 


A.  Mayor Swadley announced that Tim Senmann had recently stepped into the role of Interim Planning Director. 
B. Conduit debt – Industrial Revenue Bonds (FloCaire Group) – Lynda Templin, Husch Blackwell LLP presented 
information in detail. Director Ehlinger and City Attorney Manthe provided detail surrounding issuance of the IRBs 
and the timeline. 


       C.  Stoughton Redevelopment LLC –Scott Walker provided an update on the Riverfront Redevelopment and the current 
status. 


 D. Clerk Christen updated the Council on the alder candidates for the April 2 election.  District 4 (3 year term) will be 
determined by write-ins.  Scott Dirks has filed candidacy papers for the Multi-jurisdictional judge position as well. Incumbent 
Judge Roethe is retiring. 


 
Consent Agenda: 


A. Council Minutes – December 12, 2023  
       B. Committee Minutes and Reports: 
        (Food Pantry 10-20-23; Plan Commission 12-11-23; Finance 11-14-23; Finance     
        (open session) 11-28-23; Redevelopment Authority 11-08-23; Landmarks 11-01-23 & 11-09-23; Park   
         Recreation 11-21-23) 
       C. Minutes of the October 16, 2023 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting; Minutes of the November 20,    
        2023 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting; Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report; Stoughton         
        Utilities Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities Statistical Report  
 
Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to approve the consent agenda.  Motion carried 11-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS - none                                              


NEW BUSINESS 


R-01-2024   Amended and Restated Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement – Stoughton Riverfront Development LLC  
 







Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-01-2024   Amended and Restated Real Estate Purchase and Sale 
Agreement – Stoughton Riverfront Development LLC.  Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-02-2024 Authorizing the Finance Director and City Attorney to evaluate the City’s use of industrial revenue 
bonds for FloClaire Group, LLC’s potential development at 521 Glacier Moraine Drive.  


Schumacher summarized the action item from the Finance Committee only to authorize the evalution of the Revenue Bond, 
no action recommended on this motion at this time but to defer until the prepared for the next Finance meeting.  


Consider tax increment financing request for 521 Glacier Moraine Dr – FloClaire Group 


Sent back to the Finance Committee, was not discussed at Finance due to time constraint.  


R-03-2024 Enter into agreement with Ehlers for a proforma analysis FloClaire Group LLC  
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Butler to approve R-03-2024 Enter into agreement with Ehlers for a proforma analysis 
FloClaire Group LLC and authorize the Mayor to execute the city’s standard cost reimbursement agreement. Motion 
carried 11-0.  
 
R-04-2024 Extra-territorial land division at 2326 Skaalen Road, Town of Pleasant Springs. 
 
Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve R-04-2024 Extra-territorial land division at 2326 Skaalen Road, 
Town of Pleasant Springs. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
R-05-2024 A Resolution to adopt the Teigen Farms Park Master Plan  


No action, MSA has requested to present on this in the future. 


R-06-2024 Stoughton Wastewater Utility 2024 Rate Adjustment  
 
Motion by Payton, second by Hirsch to approve R-06-2024 Stoughton Wastewater Utility 2024 Rate Adjustment. 
This will be back at the next meeting in January as an ordinance change. 
 
R-07-2024 Authorizing the City of Stoughton Mayor to execute a petition requesting discontinuance of Chalet Court 
 
Motion by Payton, second by Caravello to approve R-07-2024 Authorizing the City of Stoughton Mayor to execute a 
petition requesting discontinuance of Chalet Court. Motion carried 11-0. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Jenson, second by Ligocki to adjourn.  Motion carried 11-0. 8:46 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 


Candee Christen 
City Clerk 








T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\Plan Com Minutes  121123.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, December 11, 2023 at 6:00 pm 


Hybrid Meeting 


 


Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Tom Robinson; Phil Caravello, Vice-Chair and Al 


Farrow 


Members Absent: Tom Majewski; Brett Schumacher; and Dorann Bradford 


Staff:  Director of Planning & Development, Rodney Scheel 


Guests: None 


 


1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:07 pm. 


 


2. Roll call and verification of quorum.  Mayor Swadley verified a quorum is present. 


 


3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law.  Mayor Swadley certified 


compliance with open meetings law. 


 


4. Plan Commission meeting minutes of November 13, 2023.   


Motion by Caravello to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Farrow.  Motion carried 


unanimously.  


 


5. Council Representative Report. 


Caravello reported the Common Council approved R-164-2023 and R-186-2023. 


 


6. Status of Current Developments.   
Scheel introduced the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials.   


 


7. Extra-territorial land division at 2326 Skaalen Road, Town of Pleasant Springs. 


Scheel introduced the request. 


 


Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the land division as 


presented, 2nd by Farrow.    


 


Motion carried unanimously 


 


8. Site plan review for a building demolition and new maintenance facility at 900 


W. Wilson Street for Stoughton Area School District.   
The design team for the School District discussed the modifications to the building that have 


been made since the November Plan Commission meeting.   


 


Motion by Robinson to approve the resolution for the site plan as presented, 2nd by Farrow.                 


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


9. Future agenda items.  No specific items were identified. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


12/11/23 


Page 2 of 2 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\Plan Com Minutes  121123.docx 


 


 


10. Adjournment. 


Motion by Caravello to adjourn at 6:25 pm, 2nd by Farrow.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


 


Rodney J. Scheel 







Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, December 13th, 2023 @ 6:00 PM 
Hybrid Meeting - Stoughton, WI 
 
Members Present:  Mike Point, Kevin Short, Dean Tangeman, Denise Duranczyk & Ed Meachin 


Absent & Excused:   


Staff:    City Forester John Kemppainen  


Guest:  


Call to order:  Kemppainen called to order @ 6:04 PM  


 
• Communications:  
• Duranczyk introduced new members to one another 


• Duranczyk informed members that ARPA funds may be available for Tree Commission in Sustainability – 
will discuss with Director Hebert. 


• Kemppainen stated seven logs were milled last week for the wood utilization program 


• Kemppainen informed members that the 2023 tree sale broke even; Forestry bought 20 of the 76 trees 
that were sold  
 
 


• NEW BUSINESS: Canopy Cover: 
 
Group discussed the possibility of restarting planting on private property when terrace space is 
unavailable. Kemppainen stated he doesn’t think it is appropriate in most situations to spend city funds to 
plant on private property. Trees aren’t often maintained well and become sidewalk obstructions.  
 
Group agrees that planting on private property would need to be in very specific circumstances; ex: no or 
very small terrace 
 
Communication/interaction with Public Works Committee:  
 
Discussion on current Commission structure and how it can be changed/improved under current 
recommendation to Council. If group is reduced we could invite non-voting members to meetings for 
regular discussion. Committee will be reduced to five total members and group understands that not all 
members currently serving will be able to continue serving.  
 
2024 Tree Commission Members: 
 
Currently we have more members than the new ordinance will require. The group is happy with that and 
shrinking the group will happen once the new ordinance is complete. Once new ordinance is adopted, final 
decisions can be made on who will continue to serve. 
 
Elect new TC Chair 
 
New Chair is supposed to be elected in May and should stay in place until following May. Tangeman 
agrees to serve as chair until May.  


 
 Future Agenda Items: 
 Spring Plant Sale for 2024 
 ARPA Fund Discussion 
 New Chair Election in May 2024 







 FAA Arboretum 
 
  
 
Motion by Short, seconded by Tangeman to adjourn the meeting at 7:35 p.m. Motion carried 5-0   
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 12/18/23, Jen Wagner -     Staff  























SENIORS IN NEED MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, December 20, 2023 
Stoughton Senior Center 
 
 
PRESENT: Cindy McGlynn, Joyce Kaping, Amy Allen, Corrine McGeever, Joann Lewandowski 
 
Call to Order: Chairperson McGlynn called the meeting to order at 9:05 am. 
 
Motion by Allen, second by Lewandowski to approve minutes from November 15th meeting. 
Motion carried. 
 
New Referrals: 
 
23-28: 62 year old Stoughton resident who is requesting assistance with security deposit due to 
being off of work to help family member. They are moving to more affordable apartment and 
will be able to afford monthly expenses now that they can be employed again. $800 is the 
request for the referral. We have not helped this person before. 
 
 Motion by Allen, second by Kaping to approve. Motion carried. 
 
23-29: 75 year old Stoughton resident who is requesting assistance with rent/parking fee due to 
extra expense of caregiving for family member.  $1100 for rent. We have not helped this person 
before. 
 
Motion by Lewandowski, second by Allen to approve. Motion carried. 
 
23-30: 78 year old Stoughton resident who is requesting assistance with rent due to having to 
pay for recent moving expenses.  $1095 for monthly rent. We have not helped this person 
before. 
 
Motion by McGeever, second by Allen to approve. Motion carried. 
 
23-31: 67 year old Stoughton resident who is requesting assistance with purchasing a water 
softener due to not having funds to afford one.  $1259. We have not helped this person before. 
 
Motion by Lewandowski, second by McGeever to approve. Motion carried. 
 
Motion to ajourn by Lewandowski, second by McGeever. Motion carried. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Cindy McGlynn, Secretary Pro-Tem 
 
 







 
 
 







STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY 


BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 


WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2023, @ 6:30 P.M. 


IN PERSON MEETING AT DEAK’S PUB & GRILL 


PRESENT: Ken Axe; Amy Ketterer; Lora Klitzke; Teri LeSage, President; Sharon Meilahn 


Bartlett; Erin Meinholz; Kristin Rosenberg, Stoughton Area School District Representative; Siri 


Vienneau, Student Trustee 


ABSENT: Jean Ligocki, Vice-President/City Council Representative; Dayna Verstegen 


ALSO PRESENT: Jim Ramsey, Library Director; Sarah Monette, Administrative Assistant 


 


I. CALL TO ORDER. 6:37 p.m. by President Teri LeSage 


II. REVIEW OF AGENDA & CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN 


MEETINGS LAW. 


III. CONSENT AGENDA. Motion to approve: Ketterer. Second: Rosenberg. Vote: 7-0 


IV. RECOGNITION OPPORTUNITIES. None.  


V. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD. None. 


VI. REVIEW/DISCUSSION OF CORRESPONDENCE. Ramsey shared a thank you 


letter about the book groups. 


VII. EDUCATION UPDATES. Rosenberg shared an op-ed about not demonizing libraries 


and announced that the SASD and the Library are partnering to bring Aaron Reynolds 


on a series of school visits. Meilahn Bartlett mentioned an author event. 


VIII. BOARD IN-SERVICE: “Gen Z and Millenials: How They Use Public Libraries” 


report from the ALA. Ramsey presented. 


IX. DIRECTOR’S REPORT. Ramsey presented. In addition to his written report, he 


shared that February 6 is Library Legislative Day. 


X. COMMITTEE REPORTS 


A. Finance:  did not meet 


B. Personnel: did not meet 


C. Planning: Planning is working on the Board Goals 


D. Policies: Policies will present at the January meeting. 


XI. Friends of the Library Report. None. 


XII. OLD BUSINESS 


A. Update on Director Evaluation process. Postponed to January meeting. 


B. Update on process of setting 2024 Board Goals. Postponed to January meeting 


XIII. NEW BUSINESS. None. 


XIV. PENDING AGENDA ITEMS.  


A. Discussion of library closure on federal holidays not currently designated as paid 


holidays by the City of Stoughton: Presidents’ Day, Juneteenth, Indigenous Peoples’ 


Day, and Veterans’ Day. 


B. Discussion of Board officer nomination process and the need for the appointment of 


an ad hoc Board Officer Nominating Committee in March. 


XV. ADJOURNMENT. Motion to adjourn at 7:03 P.M.: Meinholz. Second: Ketterer. 


Vote: 7-0. 


  


Minutes taken by Sarah Monette. 







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\LANDMARKS\2023\Landmarks Minutes 121423.docx 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday December 14, 2023 


 


Members Present:  Todd Hubing, Chair; Lisa Reeves; Greg Pigarelli, Vice-Chair; Peggy 


Veregin; David Udstuen and Alan Hedstrom.  


Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 


Absent: Kimberly Cook  


Guests: Katherine Simdon and Katrina Becker 


 


1. Call to order.  Hubing called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm.   


 


2. Roll Call and Verification of Quorum. 


Hubing verified a quorum is present. 


 


3. Certification and Compliance with Open Meetings Law. 


 Hubing stated the meeting has been noticed and is open to the public. 
 
4. Discuss Potential Improvements to Viking Brew Pub Building, 211 E. Main Street. 


The Commission discussed the potential for the building becoming listed on the National 
Registry and what that would take to achieve it. 
 
The Commission would like to meet with owner, Vik Malling to discuss bringing the building 
back to the original integrity. 
 
Hubing requested this item remain for the January agenda. 
 


5. Review/approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of November 1 and 9, 
2023.  


Hubing introduced the agenda item. 
 
Veregin found one typo to be corrected. 
 


 Motion by Veregin to approve the minutes as corrected, 2nd by Hedstrom.   Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


6. Approval of the 2023 Mini-Grant Project at 400 Garfield Street. 
Hubing introduced the request. 


 


The Commission discussed the finished project and noted the change in the cost of the 


project was less than the original amount.  The total grant amount is reduced to $1,283.00 


 


Motion by Veregin to approve the project as presented and to payout $1.283.00 in grant 


funding to the owner, 2nd by Reeves.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


7. Approval of the 2022 Mini-Grant Project at 130 E. Main Street (tabled on 11.9.23). 


Hubing introduced the request.  


  







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


12/14/23 


Page 2 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\LANDMARKS\2023\Landmarks Minutes 121423.docx  


Katherine Simdon was available on Zoom to discuss the project. 


 


The Commission discussed what was approved as part of the mini-grant project and COA 


approval.  The awning was completed according to the approval however, the painting on the 


front façade was to match the existing cream color.  White paint was used on the lower half 


of the building. 


 


The Commission agreed under the circumstances to approve the awning and allow the 


applicant to paint the lower front wall the approved matching cream color next spring. 


 


The amount of the mini-grant funding for the awning portion is $850. 


 


Motion by Hedstrom to approve the awning portion of the project and defer the painting 


portion of the project until the April 2024 meeting, 2nd by Veregin.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


8. Review of 2024 Mini-Grant Letter and Application. 


The Commission discussed the provided letter and application. 


 


Motion by Hedstrom to approve of the letter and application to send to all Local Landmark 


property owners, 2nd by Reeves.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


9. Review COA Application. 


This will be reviewed at the January meeting. 


 


10. Historic Downtown District Plaque. 


The Commission discussed having a Local District plaque at the ends of the district instead 


of individual plaques on each contributing building. 


 


Veregin suggested having a subcommittee to plan the expansion of the Local District to the 


Youth Center Building to the east.  Veregin, Hedstrom and Udstuen are interested in being 


on the subcommittee. 


 


The district plaques will be discussed once a decision is made on the expansion. 


 


Any subcommittee meeting will be noticed in case of a quorum. 


 


11. Discuss Hyland Building Maintenance, 217 W. Main Street. 
The Commission discussed potential safety issues and the overall building condition. 


 


The Commission would like to meet with the owner to discuss maintenance of the building. 


 


Motion by Reeves to have the City Building Inspector inspect the building at 217 W. Main 


Street for safety and maintenance issues and report back to the Commission, 2nd by Udstuen.  


Motion carried unanimously. 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


12/14/23 


Page 3 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\LANDMARKS\2023\Landmarks Minutes 121423.docx  


 


12. Commission Reports/Calendar. 


Discussed the potential future of the Power Plant. 


 


Stacey provided information about the foundation poured at 144 E. Main Street. 


 


Stacey noted this will be his last meeting as he is retiring on Jan 5, 2024. 


 


13. Future agenda items.   


None discussed. 


 


14. Adjournment.  
Motion by Reeves to adjourn the meeting at 7:44 pm, 2nd by Udstuen.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







Public Works Committee  
Thursday, October 19th, 2023 
(Hybrid Meeting) 
 
Members Present:, Lisa Reeves, Tom Majewski, Kay Rashka, Ben Heili, Jordan Tilleson & Mayor 
Tim Swadley  


Absent/Excused: Christina Scanlon 


Staff:  Public Works Director Brett Hebert & Office Manager Jen Wagner 
 
Guests: Kevin Short 
 
Call to Order:  Majewksi called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM 


 


1) Communications:    
 


• Director Hebert stated 138 trees were planted this week 
• Director Hebert stated that leaf collection has begun and will continue until December 3rd 


with brush collection starting next week Monday, October 23rd 
• Director Hebert presented the magnets with the 2024 Collection Schedule that will go out 


with the tax bill. This Collection Schedule will also be on the website as well as social 
media. 


• Director Hebert stated that the road projects are wrapping up for the year 
• Director Hebert informed the Committee that the Industrial South sign has been painted 
• Director Hebert stated that he received bids for the line stripping on Page St.  


 
 


2)    Approve September 21st, 2023 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Reeves to approve the 
minutes and seconded by Helli. Motion carried 5-0.    


 


New Business:  


 
3) Discussion and Possible Action to Restructure the Tree Commission: 
 
Alder Majewski stated he wanted to revisit this topic because concerns were brought to him from 
Commission members. Ultimately there really hasn’t been great communication between the 
Commission and the City as well as not having quorum to even have meetings most months.  
 
Kevin Short who is on the Commission was present and advised that he thinks they fulfill a role and 
knows recruitment hasn’t been great but he has found a few people interested and committed so he 
would like to continue with the Commission.  
 
Director Hebert suggested changing the ordinance to less members so that there will be a quorum 
every month – dropping it down to 5 vs the 8 members the ordinance states now. Discussion was 
also had about downgrading to a Committee vs Commission or even a Task Force.  







Motion by Reeves to rescind last month’s motion to dissolve the Commission and move to 
rewrite Ordinance 64-14 to restructure the Tree Commission to include five members, 3 of 
which are citizen members, one staff person, and representative from the Public Works 
Committee.  Staff is to also look into the differences between a Commission, Committee and 
Task Force, and present the findings at the next Public Works Committee Meeting.  seconded 
by Rashka. Motion carried 5-0 
 
4) Future Agenda Items: 
 


a) Snow and Ice Update from Council 
b) Pedestrian Hill Surface Remediation 


 
5) Adjourn: Motion by Reeves to adjourn, seconded by Helli to adjourn the meeting at 
6:50pm. Motion carried 5-0 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jen Wagner 10/20/2023 





		01  Plan Com Minutes  121123

		02 TC Min December 13, 2023

		03 Finance Committee minutes (signed) 12-12-2023

		04 RDA minutes (signed) 12-13-2023

		05 RDA minutes (signed) 01-02-2024

		06 Seniors in need minutes dec 23

		07 2023 12 20 December Library Board minutes

		08  Landmarks Minutes 121423

		09 PW Min October 19th, 2023






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
File Number: 


Approving an extra-territorial, jurisdictional (ETJ) land division for property located at 1450 Pleasant 
Hill Road, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval  6 - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 
None 


R -08- 2024 
 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 23, 2024 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, this land division is proposed to create a single family residential lot at 1450 Pleasant Hill 
Road in the Town of Dunkirk; and 


WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 
determined by the Plan Commission and Common Council. This property is within the City’s Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ) but is beyond the Planned Urban Development Area of the Future Land Use Map; and 


WHEREAS, on January 8, 2024 the Stoughton Plan Commission reviewed the land division request and 
recommends Common Council approval as presented; now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land 
division request for property located at 1450 Pleasant Hill Road in the Town of Dunkirk, is hereby approved 
as presented contingent on Town of Dunkirk and Dane County approval. 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:         Override Vote 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\CSM\1450 Pleasant Hill Road ETJ Land Division24.doc 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2024\010824\Plan Com Info\1450 Pleasant Hill Rd Land Division ETJ Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  December 19, 2023 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the January 8, 2024 Plan Commission Meeting and Common 


Council Meeting of January 23, 2024. 
 
Extra-Territorial Land Division at 1450 Pleasant Hill Road, Town of Dunkirk. 
This land division is proposed to create a residential lot for a single family home.  The property is 
just within the City’s 1.5-mile extra-territorial jurisdiction but beyond the Planned Urban 
Development Area of the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map.   
 
The resolution and land division information are provided.  A recommendation to the Council is 
necessary.  We see no issue with this request. 
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





















Sources: Esri, A irbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen, Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA,
Intermap and the GIS user community, Parcels


Bothum Land Division


Parcels
December 19, 2023 0 1,250 2,500625 Feet


¯


PL
EA


SA
N


T 
H


IL
L 


R
O


AD


US HIGHWAY 51


C
O


U
N


TY
 H


IG
H


W
AY


 N


E. MAIN STREET


LAND DIVISION








 
 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


To adopt modification to Subsections 74-112 and 74-113 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances. 


Committee Action:    Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval by a vote of 6 - 0.   


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-01-2024 First Reading: 
Second Reading: 


January 23, 2024 
February 13, 2024 
 


RECITALS 


WHEREAS, included in the 2024 wastewater utility budget that was presented to and approved 
by the Stoughton Utilities Committee and Stoughton Common Council was a review of wastewater 
utility retail rates and an across-the-board rate adjustment of 8%, and 


WHEREAS, an adjustment is necessary to recover costs of capital infrastructure improvements, 
including replacement of underground mains and associated street repairs/reconstruction, and 


WHEREAS, the last wastewater rate adjustment occurred on July 1, 2022, and   


WHEREAS, staff has conducted a thorough review of our current wastewater utility rates and has 
determined that the wastewater utility retail rates have fallen below adequate levels, making it necessary 
to implement an overall increase to wastewater retail rates of 8.00%, and 


WHEREAS, this adjustment will bring the total wastewater bill for an average residential customer to 
$32.92 per month, a monthly increase of $2.42, and 


WHEREAS, wastewater utility rates are solely governed by the Stoughton Common Council and changes 
in rates require a revision to Section 74 of the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances, and  


WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the wastewater utility rates and drafted modifications to Subsections 74-
112 and 74-113 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances, and 


WHEREAS, on December 18, 2023 the Stoughton Utilities Committee unanimously approved and 
recommended Common Council approval of the wastewater utility rates and prepared modifications 
to Subsections 74-112 and 74-113 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances as follows, 


ORDINANCE 


NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains 
as follows: 


1. Chapter 74 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended as provided below to amend 
Section 74-112 and 74-113 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances: 


  







 
 


 


DIVISION 3. FEES AND CHARGES 
 
Sec. 74-112. – Minimum monthly wastewater service charge 
The minimum monthly wastewater service charge shall be based on the size water 
meter in service, as per the following schedule effective February 1, 2024: 
  


Meter Size OM&R Debt Total 


5/8" & ¾" $ 3.34 $ 7.79 $11.12 
1" 5.29 11.78 17.07 
1¼" 7.30 15.50 22.80 
1½" 8.63 18.34 26.97 
2" 12.82 26.04 38.86 
3" 21.97 44.60 66.57 
4" 36.09 70.07 106.16 
6" 75.62 146.78 222.40 


 
Sec. 74-113. Volume. 
 
In addition to the minimum monthly charge based on meter size, there shall be a 
charge for all flow based on water usage as determined by the water utility, at the 
rate of $5.45 per 1,000 gals, effective February 1, 2024. 


 
2. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law. 


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a meeting held 
on January 23, 2024. 
 
Dates 


Council Adopted:  
  


Mayor Approved:  
 Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:  
  


Attest:  
 Candee Christen, City Clerk 


 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, December 18, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  3 


Motion by Thoren, the motion seconded by Peyton, to approve the Second Amendment to the Water Tower 


License Agreement between the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin and the County of Dane, Wisconsin, and authorize 


the Stoughton Utilities Director to sign on behalf of Stoughton Utilities, and recommend approval of the Second 


Amendment to License Agreement and authorization to sign to the Stoughton Common Council at a future 


meeting.  The motion carried 6 to 0 


Stoughton Wastewater Utility 2024 Rate Adjustment:  Staff presented and discussed a proposed rate 


adjustment affecting customers of the wastewater utility.  The last wastewater rate adjustment occurred on July 


1, 2022.  The proposed rate adjustment is an across-the-board increase to retail rates of 8%, bringing the total 


wastewater bill for an average residential customer to $32.92 per month, a monthly increase of $2.42.  The 


proposed adjustment date is effective for consumption on or after February 1, 2024.   


Staff informed the committee that this proposed rate increase was included in the 2024 wastewater utility 


operating budget that was approved by the committee in October 2023, and the common council in November 


2023. Staff further informed the committee that wastewater utility rates are solely governed by the Stoughton 


Common Council and changes in rates require a revision to Section 74 of the Stoughton Municipal Code of 


Ordinances.    


Discussion followed. 


Motion by Chenoweth, the motion seconded by Thoren, to approve the Wastewater Utility 2024 rate adjustment 


and adopt modifications to Subsections 74-112 and 74-113 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of 


Ordinances, and recommend approval of the rate adjustment and adoption of the ordinance revisions to the 


Stoughton Common Council at their January 9, 2024 meeting.  The motion carried 6 to 0.   


2023 Q4 Stoughton Utilities Investment Update:  Stoughton Utilities staff provided the committee with a list 


of Stoughton Utilities’ investments by individual utility for review.  Staff also informed the committee of recent 


and planned upcoming reinvestments, and the criteria used when considering whether to invest funds or maintain 


cash deposits.  Discussion followed. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that a request to 


release a utility easement as well as the annual disbursement of the 2023 RoundUp funds for July through 


December will be presented at the next committee meeting.  Routine February items will include the annual 


delinquent account write off list and presentation of the annual year in review report, as well as presentation of 


a publication to customers focused on rate education and transparency. A spring tour of the electric, water and 


wastewater infrastructure will be discussed in the future. In addition, Swadley recommended a quarterly update 


from Utilities Director Weiss about ongoing utility projects. 


Discussion followed. 


Adjournment:  Being no further business before the committee, the chair adjourned the meeting at 6:26 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 


Shannon M. Statz 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager 


 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:   
  


December 14, 2023 


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Shannon M. Statz 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager 


Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  


    
  


Stoughton Utilities Director  


Subject:  Stoughton Wastewater Utility 2024 Rate Adjustment  


Included in the 2024 wastewater utility operating budget that was presented to and approved by the 


Stoughton Utilities Committee in October 2023 and Stoughton Common Council in November 2023 was 


an across-the-board rate adjustment of 8%. The adjustment is necessary to recover costs of capital 


infrastructure improvements both today and in the future.  The proposed rate adjustment will bring the 


total wastewater utility bill for an average residential customer to $32.92 per month, a monthly increase 


of $2.42. 


The 2024 operating budget was calculated with this proposed wastewater rate adjustment having an 


effective date of February 1, 2024. The last wastewater rate adjustment occurred on July 1, 2022.   


Also included in the 2024 budget presentation was a plan to implement a flat adjustment of 8% every 


other year, with a full rate analysis on the years in between.  


Wastewater rates are solely governed by the Stoughton Common Council and changes in rates require a 


revision to Section 74 of the Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances. A copy of the proposed ordinance 


amendment is enclosed.   


If approved with a February 1, 2024 effective date, a notice to all customers will be published in the 


Stoughton Courier Hub during the month of February and on the customer billing statements issued on 


February 8, 2024.  Customers will see the effect of the rate adjustment on the billing statements dated 


March 8, 2024, for wastewater service provided during the month of February. 


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the Stoughton Wastewater Utility 2024 


rate adjustment, and recommend approval of the rate adjustment to the Stoughton Common Council at 


their January 9, 2024 meeting. 







Sewer Rate Comparison Dec 2023 


Within 15 Miles of Stoughton


Oregon Fitchburg Stoughton CURRENT Stoughton PROPOSED Madison Monona McFarland Edgerton Cottage Grove Evansville Deerfield


12/28/11 01/01/23 7/1/2022 2/1/2024 06/01/23 01/01/21 01/11/23 01/01/21 2023 01/01/22 01/01/22


11,179 30,032 13,146 13,146 258,366 8,141 8,845 5,613 7,086 5,374 2,553


5/8" 6.98$          14.33$           10.30$                           11.12$                              15.23$        17.48$    16.50$           13.99$           17.51$               15.00$      27.50$     


3/4" 6.98$          14.33$           10.30$                           11.12$                              15.23$        17.48$    16.50$           13.99$           17.51$               15.00$      27.50$     


1" 17.45$        18.77$           15.81$                           17.07$                              30.68$        25.49$    23.95$           19.39$           28.53$               37.50$      61.50$     


1 1/4" 24.43$        -$               21.11$                           22.80$                              -$            -$        28.89$           23.08$           -$                   52.50$      -$         


1 1/2" 24.43$        29.77$           24.97$                           26.97$                              56.43$        39.34$    35.89$           28.61$           47.29$               75.00$      118.00$   


2" 34.90$        43.13$           35.98$                           38.86$                              87.33$        54.66$    50.66$           39.69$           70.17$               120.00$    185.50$   


3" 55.84$        74.17$           61.64$                           66.57$                              159.43$     99.08$    84.11$           65.68$           122.53$             225.00$    -$         


4" 174.50$      117.93$         98.30$                           106.16$                            262.43$     142.76$  132.23$         139.81$         197.91$             375.00$    569.50$   


6" 349.00$      228.37$         205.93$                         222.40$                            519.93$     -$        253.23$         195.19$         -$                   750.00$    -$         


4.66$          3.15$             5.05$                              5.45$                                 4.75$          5.21$      5.50$             7.67$             7.93$                 9.63$        9.50$       


7.20$        


28.69$        32.92$                              


38.74$        35.57$                              


48.42$        38.41$                              


51.33$        41.49$                              


54.41$        44.81$                              


Notes: Quarterly Bi-Monthly Quarterly Quarterly Adjusted


Adjusted for Adjusted for Adjusted for Adjusted for Volume 


Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly Charge


for 1,000


Gallons


2024 Estimated


2025 Estimated


2026 Estimated


2027 Estimated


2028 Estimated


65.50$     30.50$                           44.67$           53.52$      34.23$        38.50$           38.32$    26.93$           32.92$                              


Per 100 Cubic Feet


Average Residential 


Customer Monthly 


Cost (Assuming 4,000 


gallons per month)


49.23$               25.62$        


Per 1,000 Gallons


M
et


er
 S


iz
e


Community


Effective Date


Population


Volume Charge













		08 O-01-2024  Wastewater Rates - Ordinance

		08a Utilities - Wastewater Rates - Ordinance - Supporting Materials










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approve Tax Incremental Financing Request – Emmi Roth USA solar panels 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ____ on 01/23/2024 
                                                               TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


 
Fiscal Impact:   $1.8 million borrowing plus related interest 


 
File Number: 


 
R-009-2024 


 
Date: 01/23/24  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, Emmi Roth USA submitted a request for Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) 
application to the City of Stoughton requesting $3.5 million to install the planned energy 
generating facility that was not included in the facility due to significant cost overruns during 
construction; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City Council discussed this matter in closed session on October 24, 2023 
with R-170-2023 to discuss the TIF application and related term sheet; and; 


 WHEREAS, the City Council directed negotiation parameters in closed session for 
negotiations with Emmi Roth USA on the topic of solar panels; and, 


 WHEREAS, the attached agreement was reached with Emmi Roth USA for issuance of 
debt proceeds for net cash proceeds of $1.8 million for the addition of solar panels on their 
Stoughton facility with funding for the debt principal and interest to come from available tax 
increment within Tax Increment #6 Business Park Expansion; 


 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council authorizes the 
issuance of tax-exempt debt for a net amount of $1.8 million to be paid to Emmi Roth USA as per 
the attached agreement for the installation of solar panels for their facility located at 1800 Williams 
Drive in the City of Stoughton. 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 


0119241001 


AGREEMENT TO UNDERTAKE DEVELOPMENT IN 


TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO.6 


 


(Emmi Roth Solar Panel Project)   


 


 


THIS AGREEMENT TO UNDERTAKE 


DEVELOPMENT entered into as of the ______ day of 


_________________, 202_ (this “Agreement”), by and 


between the City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin municipal 


corporation (the “City”), and Emmi Roth USA, Inc., a 


Wisconsin Corporation (the “Developer”). 


 


RECITALS 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has created and 


amended Tax Increment District No. 6 (the “District”); and 


 


WHEREAS, the City desires to facilitate the installation of solar panels on new 


developments within the District; and 


 


WHEREAS, Developer has constructed a corporate headquarters and food processing 


facility (“Headquarters Building”) on the real property described on Attachment A attached 


hereto (the “Property”); 


 


WHEREAS, Developer originally intended to install solar panels on the Headquarters 


Building, but construction cost increases have made it financially infeasible to install solar 


panels; and  


 


WHEREAS, as an inducement to Developer to install solar panels on its Headquarters 


Building and in order to make the installation financially feasible and to implement the Project 


Plan for the District, the City finds it appropriate to provide tax increment development incentive 


payments for the installation of solar panels on the Property, as described in, and subject to, the 


reservations contained in this Agreement; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that unless the City provides the tax 


increment development incentive payments described in this Agreement, Developer will not 


install solar panels, and the City will not accomplish the objectives of the Project Plan for the 


District; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City finds that installation of solar panels on the Property and the 


fulfillment of the terms and conditions of this Agreement are in the vital and best interests of the 


City and its residents, by expanding the tax base and accomplishing the City’s environmental and 


sustainability goals, thereby serving public purposes in accordance with state and local law; and  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA 


RETURN TO: 


City Clerk 


City of Stoughton 


207 S Forrest St,  


Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


 


 


 


 


 


P.I.N. 


281/0611-324-9100-2 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 
0119241001 


 


2 


WHEREAS, the City Council on January 23, 2024, adopted Resolution 


No. __________________, approving this Agreement and authorizing the City, through its duly 


authorized officials and agents, to execute this Agreement. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals, and the mutual promises, 


obligations, and benefits provided hereunder, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby 


acknowledged, Developer and the City agree as follows: 


 


A. DEFINITIONS.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms, when having an initial 


capital letter, shall mean: 


 


1. District.  City of Stoughton Tax Increment District No. 6 as amended. 


 


2. Property.  Property located in the District as described in Attachment A. 


 


3. Project.  The installation of solar panels on the Property.  


 


4. City Borrowing.  The amount borrowed by the City, through the issuance of 


bonds or other forms of debt or borrowing, to fund the City Financed Grant provided for in 


Section B.1 of this Agreement to facilitate the Project.   


 


B. DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE GRANTS. 


 


1. City Financed Grant.  The City shall provide a development incentive grant to 


Developer in the amount of one million eight hundred thousand dollars ($1,800,000) (“City 


Financed Grant”).  This grant shall be paid to Developer in two installments. The City shall make 


the first installment payment in the amount of $650,000 within 30 days of the Developer 


obtaining a building permit for the Project and requesting payment from the City. The City shall 


make the second installment payment of $1,150,000 to Developer within thirty days of 


Developer satisfying all of the following conditions to the City’s satisfaction: 


 


(a) Developer completing the Project in accordance with the terms of this 


Agreement. 


 


(b) Providing documentation, such as receipts and invoices, that Developer’s 


Project costs are equal to or exceed $1,800,000.  


 


(c) Providing documentation that the Project comports with the Project 


specifications in Section C.  


 


(d) Developer requesting payment from the City following completion of the 


Project.  


 


After completion of the Project, if the Developer’s project costs are less than $1,800,000, then 


the total amount of the City Financed Grant shall be equal to the Developer’s actual costs of 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 
0119241001 


 


3 


installing the Project. Developer shall be responsible for paying any Project costs in excess of 


$1,800,000.  


 


2. Return of City Financed Grant for Non-Performance. Unless the time period for 


Developer’s obligations has been tolled under Section C.1., in the event that Developer is issued 


a building permit for the Project, but does not complete construction of the Project by December 


31, 2024, subject to Force Majeure (as hereinafter defined) and receipt of the first installment of 


the City Financed Grant, then Developer shall pay the City an amount equal to the first City 


Financed Grant installment payment. Developer shall make payment to the City within thirty 


days of the City’s written request for payment under this subsection.   


 


C. DEVELOPER OBLIGATIONS. 


 


1. Timely Proceed With the Project.  Developer shall use good faith efforts to 


construct the Project during 2024, such that the benefits cited in this Agreement and the Project 


Plan are actually derived by the City and other taxing jurisdictions. In the event that the City 


does not receive funds from the City Borrowing by April 1, 2024, then Developer’s obligations 


under this Agreement shall be tolled by an amount of time equal to the length of time beginning 


on April 1, 2024 and ending on the date that the City receives City Borrowing funds.  


 


2. Project Specifications.  Developer’s Project must satisfy the following minimum 


specifications: 


 


(a) The size of the Project must be at least 1,120 kilowatts. 


 


 


(b) The Project must include a rapid shutdown compliant inverter. 


 


(c) The completed Project must have an estimated first year energy 


production of 1,300,000 kWh. 


 


3. Insurance.  Developer shall maintain in effect and furnish to the City evidence of 


insurance and proof of payment of premiums as follows: 


 


(a) During Construction.  During the process of construction of the Project, 


policies of builder’s risk completed value non-reporting form of fire and extended coverage, 


vandalism, and malicious mischief hazard insurance in favor of the City, if provided by the 


contractor, or equivalent casualty insurance provided by Developer, to the extent of the City’s 


interest in the Project, and covering the Project in at least the amount of the estimated cost of 


replacement of the Project, with loss payable endorsements in favor of the City with provision 


that such coverage will not be terminated without 10 days prior written notice to the City. 


 


(b) After Completion.  After completion of construction of the Project, 


Developer, and its successors and assigns, shall keep Developer’s Headquarters Building  


adequately insured against loss or damage occasioned by fire, extended coverage perils (to 


specifically include coverage for wind, storm, and similar natural disaster and hazards), which 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 
0119241001 


 


4 


shall remain in effect for the life of the District.  All insurance policies obtained to satisfy this 


requirement shall include a provision that they shall not be terminated, amended, or canceled 


without at least 30 days prior written notice to the City.  If any portion of the Project or 


Headquarters Building is substantially damaged or destroyed by fire, wind, storm, mold, 


bacteria, or any other cause during the life of the District, Developer shall promptly rebuild or 


repair the damaged or destroyed portions of the Project or Headquarters Building.  Developer 


shall provide the City with a certificate of insurance from its insurance carrier evidencing the 


required coverage not later than 30 days after the initial effective date thereof and upon each 


renewal.     


 


4. Other Approvals/Requirements Apply.  This Agreement is intended only to 


address those special concerns related to implementation of the Project Plan for the District, 


substantially in accordance with the Project Plan.  Nothing in this Agreement relieves Developer 


from any obligations to obtain all necessary approvals and to follow all applicable local, state, 


and federal requirements in order to proceed with the Project. 


 


5.   Taxability of Property. Developer warrants that, unless agreed to by the City, the 


Property shall remain taxable for the life of the District. Developer shall take all reasonable 


actions to assure that the Property shall not be exempt from property taxation, in full or in part, 


except as required by law.  Developer shall not, unless agreed to by the City, submit any request 


or application for property tax exemption of the Property, in full or in part, challenge the status 


of the Property as fully subject to property taxation, or seek any ruling by a court or any statutory 


change that would entitle the Property to exemption, in full or part.  Nothing in the foregoing 


shall prevent the Developer from contesting the assessed valuation of the Property for real estate 


tax purposes.   


 


D. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO AGREEMENT OBLIGATIONS. 


 


All of the following must occur before either party’s obligations under this Agreement 


shall become effective.   


 


1. The execution and delivery by the City and Developer of this Agreement. 


 


2. The City’s approval and issuance of tax-exempt bonds for the City Borrowing, in 


the principal amount of not less than $1,800,000, at a true interest cost of not more than 5 


percent. 


 


3. The receipt by Developer of all approvals and permits needed to proceed with the 


Project. 


 


Unless the time period for Developer’s obligations has been tolled under Section C.1., if the 


events described in this Section D are not satisfied by September 30, 2024, then this Agreement 


shall be null and void. 


 


E. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 


 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 
0119241001 


 


5 


1. Authorization.  Developer represents and warrants to the City that Developer’s 


execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement have been duly authorized and do not 


conflict with, result in a violation of, or constitute a default under any provision of Developer’s 


articles of organization or membership agreements, or any agreement or other instrument binding 


upon Developer, or any law, governmental regulation, court decree, or order applicable to 


Developer or to the Property. 


 


2. Available Funds.  Developer represents and warrants to the City that is has 


sufficient fund to complete and pay for the costs of the Project that are not paid from the City 


Financed Grant. 


 


3. Property Liens. Developer warrants that it is the sole owner of the Property, in fee 


simple, and the Property is not encumbered by any mortgage. Developer covenants it will not 


allow any lien to be placed upon or taken against the Property prior to the recording of this 


Agreement with the Register of Deeds for Dane County.  


 


 


F. GENERAL CONDITIONS. 


 


1. No Vested Rights Granted.  Except as provided by law, or as expressly provided 


in this Agreement, no vested rights to develop the Project shall inure to Developer by virtue of 


this Agreement.  Nor does the City warrant that Developer is entitled to any other approvals 


required for development of the Property or construction of the Project as a result of this 


Agreement. 


 


2. Binding Effect/Assignment.  The obligations of Developer and the City under this 


Agreement shall be binding on their respective successors and assigns.  Developer may not 


assign its benefits or obligations under this Agreement without the express prior written approval 


of the City, and any unapproved assignment is void.  The City shall have the sole discretion to 


release or not release Developer from the obligations and liabilities under this Agreement.   


 


3. No Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed or 


constitute a waiver of any other provision, nor shall it be deemed or constitute a continuing 


waiver unless expressly provided for by a written amendment to this Agreement signed by both 


the City and Developer, nor shall the waiver of any default under this Agreement be deemed a 


waiver of any subsequent default or defaults.  Failure by either party to exercise any right under 


this Agreement shall not constitute the approval of any wrongful act by the other party hereto. 


 


4. Amendment/Modification.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by 


a written amendment approved and executed by the City and Developer. 


 


5. Remedies upon Default.  A default is defined herein as a party’s breach of, or 


failure to comply with, the terms of this Agreement and the failure to cure such breach within 


thirty (30) days after the date of written notice from the non-defaulting party.  The parties reserve 


all remedies at law or in equity necessary to cure any default or remedy any damages or losses 


under this Agreement.  Rights and remedies are cumulative, and the exercise of one or more 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 
0119241001 


 


6 


rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise of other rights or remedies.  In addition to other 


remedies provided to the City by this Agreement, the City shall have the right, upon reasonable 


notice to Developer and in accordance with applicable laws, to impose special assessments or 


special charges against the Property for any amount to which the City is entitled by virtue of this 


Agreement. No hearing shall be required prior to imposing special assessments under this 


section. This provision constitutes the Developer’s acknowledgment of special benefit and the 


Developer’s consent to, and waiver of notice and hearing on all proceedings imposing such 


special assessments or special charges.  


 


 


6. Entire Agreement/Appendices Incorporated.  This written Agreement and the 


attachments hereto shall constitute the entire Agreement between Developer and the City as of 


the date hereof. 


 


7. Severability.  If any part, term, or provision of this Agreement is held by the 


courts to be illegal or otherwise unenforceable, such illegality or unenforceability shall not affect 


the validity of any other part, term, or provision and the rights of the parties will be construed as 


if the invalid part, term, or provision was never part of the Agreement.  


 


8. Immunity.  Nothing contained in this Agreement constitutes a waiver of the City’s 


sovereign immunity under applicable law. 


 


9. Indemnification.  Developer, and its successors and assigns, shall indemnify, hold 


harmless, and defend the City and its officers, agents, and employees from any and all liability 


suits, actions, claims, demands, losses, costs, damages, and expenses or liabilities of every kind 


and description, including attorney costs and fees, for claims of any character including liability 


and expenses in connection with the loss of life, personal injury, or damage to property, or any of 


them, brought because of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any persons or 


property on account of or arising out of the construction of the Project occasioned wholly or in 


part by any act or omission on Developer’s part, or on the part of its agents, contractors, 


subcontractors, invitees, or employees, at any time occurring on, at, or in the Property, except as 


a result of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any officer, agent, or employee of the 


City.  The City shall be entitled to appear in any proceedings to defend itself against such claims, 


and all costs, expenses, and reasonable attorney fees incurred by the City in connection with such 


defense shall be paid by Developer to the City.  The foregoing indemnity provisions shall survive 


the cancellation or termination of this Agreement as to all matters arising or accruing prior to 


such cancellation or termination and the foregoing indemnity shall survive in the event the City 


elects to exercise any of the remedies as provided under this Agreement following default 


hereunder. 


 


10. Notice.  Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be deemed 


effective given in writing and personally delivered or mailed by U.S. Mail as follows: 


 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 
0119241001 


 


7 


To Developer:   Ed Jones 


Vice President of Supply Chain 


    1800 Williams Drive 


    Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


To the City:   Candee Christen 


City Clerk - City of Stoughton 


Stoughton City Hall 


207 S. Forrest St. 


Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


11. Recordation.  The City may record a copy of this Agreement, or a memorandum 


thereof, in the office of the Dane County Register of Deeds.  


 


12. Personal Jurisdiction and Venue.  Personal jurisdiction and venue for any civil 


action commenced by either party arising out of this Agreement shall be deemed to be proper 


only if such action is commenced in Circuit Court for Dane County unless it is determined that 


such Court lacks jurisdiction.  Developer hereby consents to personal jurisdiction in Dane 


County.  Developer also expressly waives the right to bring such action in, or to remove such 


action to, any other court, whether state or federal, unless it is determined that the Circuit Court 


for Dane County lack jurisdiction. 


 


13. Ratification.  Developer hereby approves and ratifies all actions taken to date by 


the City, its officers, employees, and agents in connection with the District, and in connection 


with the zoning and other approvals relating to the Property and the Project. 


 


14. Compliance with Laws.  Developer shall comply with all federal, state, and local 


laws with respect to the Project, including, but not limited to, laws governing building and 


construction, the environment, nondiscrimination, and employment and contracting practices, to 


the extent they are applicable. 


 


15. No Partnership.  The City does not, in any way or for any purpose, become a 


partner, employer, principal, agent, or joint venturer of or with Developer. 


 


16. Good Faith.  Both parties to this Agreement shall exercise good faith in 


performing any obligation that party has assumed under the terms of this Agreement, including, 


but not limited to, the performance of obligations that require the exercise of discretion and 


judgment. 


 


17. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the state of 


Wisconsin. 


 


18. No Private Right or Cause of Action.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be inter-


preted or construed to create any private right or any private cause of action by or on behalf of 


any person not a party hereto. 


 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 
0119241001 


 


8 


19. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the date and year first 


written above. 


 


20. Term.  Except as provided in Section D, this Agreement shall continue in full 


force and effect until such time as Developer’s obligations under Section C of this Agreement, 


and the City’s obligations under Section B of this Agreement, have been fully satisfied, at which 


point this Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force or effect.  At that time, if this 


Agreement has been recorded, the parties shall jointly execute and record a release of the 


Agreement. 


 


21. Force Majeure. Developer shall not be liable for any substantial interruption, 


delay or failure to perform any obligation under this Agreement when such interruption, delay or 


failure is due to causes beyond its reasonable control, including any strikes, lockouts, acts of any 


government, riot, insurrection or other hostilities, embargo, fuel or energy shortage, fire, flood, 


pandemic, epidemic, acts of God or general inability to obtain necessary labor, materials or 


utilities. In any such event, Developer's obligations hereunder shall be postponed for such time 


as its performance is suspended or delayed on account thereof and it shall have no liability to the 


City in connection therewith. Developer will promptly notify the City, in writing, upon learning 


of the occurrence of such event of force majeure. Upon the cessation of the force majeure event, 


Developer will use commercially reasonable efforts promptly to resume its performance.  


 


22. Construction of Agreement.  Each party participated fully in the drafting of each 


and every part of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be construed strictly in favor of or 


against either party.  It shall be construed simply and fairly to each party.  


 


23. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and 


all such executed counterparts shall constitute the same Agreement. A signed copy of this 


Agreement transmitted by facsimile or email shall be treated as an original and shall be binding 


against the party whose signature appears on such copy.   


 


 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 
0119241001 


 


9 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 


year and date first set forth above, and by so signing this Agreement, certify that they have been 


duly authorized by their respective entities to execute this Agreement on their behalf. 


 


CITY: 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Dane County, Wisconsin 


 


 


       


Tim Swadley, City Mayor 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


       


Candee Christen, City Clerk 


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN 


 


COUNTY OF DANE  


 


Personally came before me this ________ day of _______________, 202_, the above-


named Tim Swadley, the City of Stoughton Mayor, and Candee Christen, the City of Stoughton 


Clerk, to me known to be the persons and officers who executed the foregoing instrument and 


acknowledged that they executed the same as such officers by the City’s authority. 


 


Subscribed and sworn to before me 


This _______ day of __________________, 202_. 


 


       


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


Print Name:      


My Commission:     


 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 
0119241001 


 


10 


DEVELOPER: 


 


 


By       


 


STATE OF WISCONSIN 


 


COUNTY OF DANE 


 


Personally came before me this _______ day of ________________, 202_ the above named                         


______________________, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing 


instrument and acknowledged the same. 


 


 


Subscribed and sworn to before me 


This _______ day of __________________, 202_. 


 


       


Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 


Print Name:      


My Commission:     


 


 


 


Approved as to Form: 


 


__________________________ 


Rick Manthe 


City Attorney 


 


 


Attachments: 


A – Description of the Property 


 
 







L:\DOCS\005649\003246\AGREE\4168351.DOC 


0119241001 


ATTACHMENT A 


 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 


 


Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Number 16007, recorded with the Dane County Register of Deeds 


on May 18, 2022 as document number 5834477in Volume 117, pages 302-303.  





		R-009-2024 - 4187441-2024 Approve Tax Incremental Financing Request Emmi Roth USA Solar Panels.pdf

		Emmi Roth TIF Agreement.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Reduction in GIP-Glacier Moraine, LLC Letter of Credit 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 01/09/2024 


Fiscal Impact:   $193,791 


File Number: R-10-2024 Date 01/23/24 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, City of Stoughton sold parcel 281/0611-324-9890-2 located at 441 Glacier 
Moraine Dr. to GIP-Glacier Moraine, LLC as authorized under R-22-2020; and, 


WHEREAS, the purchase and sale agreement for the above property required an 
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit for $550,000 related to tax increments on the property; and, 


WHEREAS, the Common Council authorized the reduction of the above Irrevocable 
Standby Letter of Credit from $550,000 to $450,765 on April 12, 2022 under R-74-2022; and, 


WHEREAS, the Common Council authorized the reduction of the above Irrevocable 
Standby Letter of Credit from $450,765 to $424,780 on January 10, 2023 under R-07-2023; and, 


WHEREAS, the Real Estate Property Tax Bill for 2023 (payable 2024) for the above 
property indicates an increase in assessed value on the property of $1,286,000; and 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends a reduction of the 
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit from $424,780 to $193,791 as per the attached analysis; and, 


WHEREAS, a copy of the current Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit #553 from Bank 
of Deerfield is attached; 







 


 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit 
#553 from Bank of Deerfield on behalf of GIP-Glacier Moraine, LLC may be reduced to $193,791 
as of January 23, 2024. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







Construction Valuation Revenue Assessed Mill Tax Note


Year Year Year Value Current Year Cumulative Rate Increment


2017 2018 2019 -$  $                      -   21.744266$        -$ A
2018 2019 2020 -$  $                      -   21.357263$        -$ -1.78% A
2019 2020 2021 -$  $                      -   20.559528$        -$ -3.74% A
2020 2021 2022 355,500$ 355,500$  $            355,500 19.240283$        6,839.92$ -6.42% B
2021 2022 2023 513,900$ 158,400$  $            513,900 17.172570$        8,824.98$ -10.75% C
2022 2023 2024 1,799,900$ 1,286,000$  $         1,799,900 15.910000$        28,636.41$ -7.35% D, E
2023 2024 2025 -$  $         1,799,900 15.671350$        28,206.86$ -1.50% F, G
2024 2025 2026 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 15.436280$        27,783.76$ -1.50% F
2025 2026 2027 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 15.204736$        27,367.00$ -1.50% F
2026 2027 2028 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 14.976665$        26,956.50$ -1.50% F
2027 2028 2029 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 14.752015$        26,552.15$ -1.50% F
2028 2029 2030 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 14.530734$        26,153.87$ -1.50% F
2029 2030 2031 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 14.312773$        25,761.56$ -1.50% F
2030 2031 2032 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 14.098082$        25,375.14$ -1.50% F
2031 2032 2033 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 13.886610$        24,994.51$ -1.50% F
2032 2033 2034 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 13.678311$        24,619.59$ -1.50% F
2033 2034 2035 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 13.473137$        24,250.30$ -1.50% F
2034 2035 2036 -$ -$  $         1,799,900 13.271040$        23,886.54$ -1.50% F, H
Total 356,209.10$ 


Capital Improvements (principal and interest) Minimum required incremental tax revenue by December 31, 2024 550,000.00$       


Principal 2,617,931$         Less projected tax increment revenue (356,209.10)$      
Interest 379,640$            Required letter of credit amount 193,790.90$       
Total 2,997,571$         


Developable Acres 24.50                  


Cost to Recover / Acre 122,350$            


Acres purchased 4.43


Calculated cost to recover 542,010$            


GIP-Glacier Moraine agreement 550,000$            


A.  Mill rate as per Access Dane data, Parcel 0611-324-9240-2, 1600 Williams Drive, E-Bills 2018 through 2020


B.  Mill rate as per Access Dane data, Parcel 0611-324-9890-2, GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC, 2021 E-Bill, 441 Glacier Moraine Dr.


C.  Mill rate as per Access Dane data, Parcel 0611-324-9890-2, GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC, 2022 E-Bill, 441 Glacier Moraine Dr.


D.  Assessed value as per Access Dane parcel report 11-10-2023


E.  Mill rate as per 2023 property tax bill for 281/0611-324-9890-2 441 Glacier Moraine Dr.


F.  Future year increment as per Purchase and Sale Agreement, Section A.2. Projected Actual Tax Increment.


G.  Final year for adding tax increment values to the calculations.


H.  Final year that actual tax increment may be lawfully allocated to the City pursuant to Wis. Stat. 66.1105.


Tax Increment


City of Stoughton


TID #6 -- Grosso Valuation


December 12, 2023


Mill Rate Change


S:\Finance\TIF\TIF 6 Business Park Expansion\Grosso\Grosso calculations 12-12-2023
Taxes







If not paid by due dates, installment option is lostWarning:


Est. Fair Mkt. Improvements
    1,703,100


PLEASE RETURN LOWER
PORTION WITH REMITTANCE


PAYMENT


BALANCE


DATE


And Second Installment Payment Payable To
DANE COUNTY TREASURER
T ADAM GALLAGHER
PO BOX 1299
MADISON WI 53701-1299


STATE OF WISCONSIN
REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2023


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY


GIP-GLACIER MORAINE LLC
PO BOX 159
COTTAGE GROVE WI 53527


CITY OF STOUGHTON TREASURER
207 S FORREST ST
STOUGHTON WI 53589


Make Check Payable to:


CITY OF STOUGHTON TREASURER
207 S FORREST ST
STOUGHTON WI 53589


Parcel #:
Alt. Parcel #:


0611-324-9890-2


BILL NUMBER:    2815049
IMPORTANT:   · Correspondence should refer to parcel number.
                        · See reverse side for important information.
· Be sure this description covers your property.  This description is
 for property tax bill only and may not be a full legal description.
5567763 5003092 4635201 2531868    ACRES: 4.430
SEC 32, T 06 N, R 11 E, SE¼ of SE¼
PLAT: 15363-CSM 15363
BLOCK/CONDO: LOT 3
LOT 3 CSM 15363 CS110/62&63-2/28/2020 F/K/A
LOT 2 CSM 14436 CS99/112&113-2/7/2017 DESCR AS
SEC 32-6-11 PRT SE1/4SE1/4 & PRT SW1/4SE1/4...


Check For Billing Address Change.


OR PAY INSTALLMENTS OF:


REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2023
Bill #:


Alt. Parcel #:
Parcel #: 0611-324-9890-2


A Star in this box
means Unpaid Prior
Year Taxes


Net Assessed Value Rate
(Does NOT reflect credits)


School taxes reduced by
school levy tax credit


0.015910000


$2,741.18


2022
Est. State Aids


Allocated Tax Dist.
223,265


2,139,059
8,154,421
1,079,375


11,596,120


Taxing Jurisdiction


DANE COUNTY
CITY OF STOUGHTON
STOUGHTON SCHOOL DIST
MADISON TECH COLLEGE


Total


2023
Est. State Aids


Allocated Tax Dist.
315,613


2,381,393
8,806,221
1,078,113


12,581,340


Ave. Assmt. Ratio
0.9632


Total Assessed Value
1,799,900


Total Est. Fair Mkt.
1,868,700


Assessed Value Land
159,500


Ass'd. Value Improvements
    1,640,400


Est. Fair Mkt. Land
165,600


Pay to Local Treasurer By Jan 31, 2024


 1ST INSTALLMENT
Pay to Local Treasurer


$15,042.39
BY January 31, 2024


$29,329.72Total Due For Full Payment


2815049


TOTAL DUE FOR FULL PAYMENT
Pay By January 31,  2024


29,329.72$


2022
Net Tax


1,439.31
3,714.55
3,288.80
382.32


8,824.98
64.55


8,760.43


2023
Net Tax


5,149.20
12,171.76
10,078.83
1,236.62


28,636.41
61.75


28,574.66


 2ND INSTALLMENT
Pay to County Treasurer


$14,287.33
BY July 31, 2024


% Tax
Change


-4.3%


Net Property Tax
DELINQUENT UTILITIES


28,574.66
755.06


GIP-GLACIER MORAINE LLC
PO BOX 159
COTTAGE GROVE WI 53527


And Second Installment Due On or Before July 31, 2024
$14,287.33


Or First Installment Due On or Before January 31, 2024
$15,042.39


Full Payment Due On or Before January 31, 2024
$29,329.72


PAYMENT


BALANCE


DATE


 FOR TREASURERS USE ONLY


09  061132498902  0029329729  0015042393              9   ÞÞ


 FOR TREASURERS USE ONLY


Property Address: 441 GLACIER MORAINE DR


GIP-GLACIER MORAINE LLC


and total tax is delinquent subject to interest and, if applicable,
penalty. Failure to pay on time.  See reverse.


First Dollar Credit
Lottery & Gaming Credit
Net Property Tax


P
A


-6
86


/2
 (


R
. 8


-1
5)


FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY
- Voter Approved Temporary Tax Increases


Taxing Jurisdiction
STOUGHTON SCHOOL DIST
STOUGHTON SCHOOL DIST


    Total
    Additional Taxes


407,431.64
1,264,082.77


Total Additional Taxes
Applied to Property


425.86  
1,321.27  


Year
Increase Ends


2043
2043















CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Reduction in GIP-Glacier Moraine, LLC Letter of Credit 


 
Committee 
Action: 
 
Fiscal Impact:  


 
Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 01/10/2023 


TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


None 
 
File Number: 


 
R-07-2023 Date 01/10/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, City of Stoughton sold parcel 281/0611-324-9890-2 located at 441 Glacier 
Moraine Dr. to GIP-Glacier Moraine, LLC as authorized under R-22-2020; and, 


WHEREAS, the purchase and sale agreement for the above property required an 
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit for $550,000 related to tax increments on the property; and, 


WHEREAS, the Common Council authorized the reduction of the above Irrevocable 
Standby Letter of Credit from $550,000 to $450,765 on April 12, 2022 under R-74-2022; and, 


WHEREAS, the Real Estate Property Tax Bill for 2022 (payable 2023) for the above 
property indicates an increase in assessed value on the property of $158,400; and 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends a reduction of $25,985 for 
the Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit based upon $158,400 increase in the assessed value as per 
the attached analysis; and, 


WHEREAS, a copy of the current Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit #553 from Bank 
of Deerfield is attached; 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit 
#553 from Bank of Deerfield on behalf of GIP-Glacier Moraine, LLC may be reduced to $424,780 
as of January 10, 2023. 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Mayor Tim Swadley Date 
Council Action:         Override Vote 







If not paid by due dates, installment option is lostWarning:


Est. Fair Mkt. Improvements
      365,000


PLEASE RETURN LOWER
PORTION WITH REMITTANCE


PAYMENT


BALANCE


DATE


And Second Installment Payment Payable To
DANE COUNTY TREASURER
T ADAM GALLAGHER
PO BOX 1299
MADISON WI 53701-1299


STATE OF WISCONSIN
REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2022


CITY OF STOUGHTON
DANE COUNTY


GIP-GLACIER MORAINE LLC
PO BOX 159
COTTAGE GROVE WI 53527


CITY OF STOUGHTON TREASURER
207 S FORREST ST
STOUGHTON WI 53589


Make Check Payable to:


CITY OF STOUGHTON TREASURER
207 S FORREST ST
STOUGHTON WI 53589


Parcel #:
Alt. Parcel #:


0611-324-9890-2


BILL NUMBER:    2815005
IMPORTANT:   · Correspondence should refer to parcel number.
                        · See reverse side for important information.
· Be sure this description covers your property.  This description is
 for property tax bill only and may not be a full legal description.
5567763 5003092 4635201 2531868    ACRES: 4.430
SEC 32, T 06 N, R 11 E, SE¼ of SE¼
PLAT: 15363-CSM 15363
BLOCK/CONDO: LOT 3
LOT 3 CSM 15363 CS110/62&63-2/28/2020 F/K/A
LOT 2 CSM 14436 CS99/112&113-2/7/2017 DESCR AS
SEC 32-6-11 PRT SE1/4SE1/4 & PRT SW1/4SE1/4...


Check For Billing Address Change.


OR PAY INSTALLMENTS OF:


REAL ESTATE PROPERTY TAX BILL FOR 2022
Bill #:


Alt. Parcel #:
Parcel #: 0611-324-9890-2


A Star in this box
means Unpaid Prior
Year Taxes


Net Assessed Value Rate
(Does NOT reflect credits)


School taxes reduced by
school levy tax credit


0.017172570


$ 735.52


2021
Est. State Aids


Allocated Tax Dist.
211,451


1,981,606
7,927,981
1,024,108


11,145,146


Taxing Jurisdiction


DANE COUNTY
CITY OF STOUGHTON
STOUGHTON SCHOOL DIST
MADISON TECH COLLEGE


Total


2022
Est. State Aids


Allocated Tax Dist.
223,265


2,139,059
8,154,421
1,079,375


11,596,120


Ave. Assmt. Ratio
0.9709


Total Assessed Value
513,900


Total Est. Fair Mkt.
529,300


Assessed Value Land
159,500


Ass'd. Value Improvements
      354,400


Est. Fair Mkt. Land
164,300


Pay to Local Treasurer By Jan 31, 2023


 1ST INSTALLMENT
Pay to Local Treasurer


$4,412.30
BY January 31, 2023


$8,792.51Total Due For Full Payment


2815005


TOTAL DUE FOR FULL PAYMENT
Pay By January 31,  2023


8,792.51$


2021
Net Tax


1,043.15
2,779.17
2,726.63
290.98


6,839.93
69.28


6,770.65


2022
Net Tax


1,439.31
3,714.55
3,288.80
382.32


8,824.98
64.55


8,760.43


 2ND INSTALLMENT
Pay to County Treasurer


$4,380.21
BY July 31, 2023


% Tax
Change


38.0%
33.7%
20.6%
31.4%


29.0%
-6.8%


29.4%


Net Property Tax
DELINQUENT UTILITIES


8,760.43
32.08


GIP-GLACIER MORAINE LLC
PO BOX 159
COTTAGE GROVE WI 53527


And Second Installment Due On or Before July 31, 2023
$4,380.21


Or First Installment Due On or Before January 31, 2023
$4,412.30


Full Payment Due On or Before January 31, 2023
$8,792.51


PAYMENT


BALANCE


DATE


 FOR TREASURERS USE ONLY


09  061132498902  0008792517  0004412300              9   ÞÞ


 FOR TREASURERS USE ONLY


Property Address: 441 GLACIER MORAINE DR


GIP-GLACIER MORAINE LLC


and total tax is delinquent subject to interest and, if applicable,
penalty. Failure to pay on time.  See reverse.


First Dollar Credit
Lottery & Gaming Credit
Net Property Tax


P
A


-6
86


/2
 (


R
. 8


-1
5)











Construction Valuation Revenue Mill Tax Mill Rate
Year Value Added Year Increment Year Rate Increment Change


1 2015  $                   -   2016  $                    -   2017 23.7900$    -$ 
2 2016 -$ 2017  $                    -   2018 23.8696$    -$ 0.33%
3 2017 -$ 2018  $                    -   2019 22.9622$    -$ -3.80%
4 2018 -$ 2019  $                    -   2020 22.5816$    -$ -1.66%
5 2019 -$ 2020  $                    -   2021 22.1444$    -$ -1.94%
6 2020 355,500$ 2021  $           355,500 2022 20.6422$    7,338.30$ -6.78%
7 2021 158,400$ 2022  $           513,900 2023 18.0426$    9,272.09$ -12.59%
8 2022 -$ 2023  $           513,900 2024 17.7720$    A 9,133.01$ -1.50%
9 2023 -$ 2024  $           513,900 2025 17.5054$    A 8,996.02$ -1.50%
10 2024 -$ 2025  $           513,900 2026 17.2428$    8,861.08$ -1.50%
11 2025 -$ 2026  $           513,900 2027 16.9842$    8,728.16$ -1.50%
12 2026 -$ 2027  $           513,900 2028 16.7294$    8,597.24$ -1.50%
13 2027 -$ 2028  $           513,900 2029 16.4785$    8,468.28$ -1.50%
14 2028 -$ 2029  $           513,900 2030 16.2313$    8,341.25$ -1.50%
15 2029 -$ 2030  $           513,900 2031 15.9878$    8,216.14$ -1.50%
16 2030 -$ 2031  $           513,900 2032 15.7480$    8,092.89$ -1.50%
17 2031 -$ 2032  $           513,900 2033 15.5118$    7,971.50$ -1.50%
18 2032 -$ 2033  $           513,900 2034 15.2791$    7,851.93$ -1.50%
19 2033 -$ 2034  $           513,900 2035 15.0499$    7,734.15$ -1.50%
20 2034 -$ 2035  $           513,900 2036 14.8242$    7,618.14$ -1.50%


513,900$          125,220.16$         


Capital Improvements (P&I)
Valuation Year Value Added LOC Reduction LOC Balance Reduction Date Principal 2,617,931$    


2021 355,500$               99,235$            450,765$          12/15/2021 Interest 379,640$       
2022 158,400$               25,985$            424,780$          12/15/2022 2,997,571$    
2023 -$                      -$                  424,780$          12/15/2023
2024 -$                      -$                  424,780$          12/15/2024 Developable Acres 24.50             


513,900$               125,220$          Cost to Recover / Acre 122,350$       


12/15/2024 Draw on LOC 424,779.84$          Grosso 542,010$       


Minimum Forecasted Incremental Revenue by 12/31/24 550,000$          550,000$       


Reduction in LOC:


City of Stoughton
TID #6 -- Grosso Valuation
Last Updated 12/14/2022


S:\Finance\TIF\TIF 6-Business Park Expansion\Valuation Materials\Grosso revised
Taxes













		R-xxx-2023 Reduction in GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC Letter of Credit.pdf

		Grosso calculations 12-12-2023.pdf

		2023 RE Tax Bills.pdf

		GIP Glacier Moraine - Grosso #553 $424, 780.pdf

		10 R-07-2023 Reduction in GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC Letter of Credit.pdf

		10 R-07-2023 Reduction in GIP-Glacier Moraine LLC Letter of Credit

		10a GIP-Glacier Moraince LOC reduction 01-10-2023

		Tax Bill GIP.pdf

		R-74-2022 - Resolution Approving Reduction in GIP - Glacier Moraine LLC Letter of Credit.pdf

		Grosso revised.pdf

		GIP Glacier Moraine - Grosso  #553  $450,765.pdf











